
TBM 021412 Page 1 
 

PAHRUMP TOWN BOARD MEETING 
NYE COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 

2100 E WALT WILLIAMS DRIVE 
TUESDAY – 7:00 P.M.  

February 14, 2012 
MINUTES 

 

PRESENT:        
 Town Board:          

Mike Darby 
Vicky Parker  
Carolene Endersby       
Dr. Tom Waters 
Harley Kulkin 

 
Staff: 

Bill Kohbarger, Town Manager 
Brett Meich, Attorney  
Scott Lewis, Chief 
Al Balloqui, Community Business & Development Services Manager 
Samantha Carns, Executive Assistant 

1. Call to Order, Moment of Silence, and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mike Darby called the meeting to order. 
Tom Waters led in the moment of silence and Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
2. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding Moving the Order of or Deleting an Agenda Item(s).   

 
Vicky Parker requested to move the consent agenda to 3.5. 
There were no objections. 

2.5  
Bill Kohbarger announced Mr. Jason Shaw as a new employee in the Buildings and Grounds 
department. 
He also announced Scott Perry, an on staff firefighter, had been promoted to Lieutenant. 

 
3. Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation to the Town of Pahrump Staff Members.   

 
The Town Board jointly presented the certificates to all staff members in attendance. 
 

3.5 Discussion and Possible Decision Consent agenda items:   
a. Action – Approval of Town Vouchers. 
b. Action – Approval of Town Board Minutes for January 10, 2012 and January 24, 2012. 
c. Action – Approval to Accept Mr. Michael Zaman, Mr. Allan J. Walter and Ms. Elizabeth L. 

Weikel to the Pahrump Public Lands Advisory Board. 
d. Action – Approval to Accept the Resignation of Mr. Will Bond from the Pahrump Public Lands 

Advisory Board. 
 
Mrs. Parker motioned to approve. 
Harley Kulkin seconded. 
 
Mr. Kulkin thanked the volunteers of the Public Lands Advisory Board. 



TBM 021412 Page 2 
 

Mrs. Parker also welcomed the new members thanking all who participated in the BLM Cleanup 
the previous Saturday. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 
 

4. Announcements   
 
Mr. Darby announced he would be running for the District 36 Assembly Seat and would therefore be 
resigning as Chairman of the Board at the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
Announcements were read by Mr. Kulkin. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger announced a Sex & Money Class presented by No to Abuse and Nye Communities 
Coalition on the illegal sex trafficking of minors as well as drug trafficking. 
 
Sam Jones thanked all who participated in the visit of Dr. Ron Paul including Mr. Kohbarger, Mr. 
Luis, Debbie Beatty, Sears, Frazer Furniture and the CCSC. 
 
Butch Harper announced the first two Nye County youth had been nominated and recognized in the 
Mirror. He also spoke of the Act of Kindness Award with Channel 46. 
 
Phil Huff announced on the 25th there would be a presentation of the Lincoln Lawyer at 1pm at the 
Museum. 

 
5. Public Comment 

 
Public comment was heard. 

 
6. Advisory Board Reports from Advisory Board Chairpersons and/or Town Board Liaisons on the 

Status of Advisory Boards.   
 
Robert Adams, Chairman of the Public Lands Advisory Board, spoke of the BLM Cleanup the 
previous weekend and included photos in his presentation.  
He said they had a great turnout and finished early as they filled up all of the provided dumpsters. He 
thanked all who contributed and participated. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger stated he attended the previous Youth Advisory Board meeting and they were working 
on a report to bring to the Town Board followed by the School District Board. 
 
Donna Cox offered a report for the Boundary Line Advisory Board. 
It was determined this report be postponed until the next agenda for the quarterly advisory board 
reports. 
 
John Pawlak spoke for the Nuclear Waste & Environmental Advisory Board about the wonderful job 
Public Lands Advisory Board did with the BLM cleanup. He also announced the annual Town 
Cleanup and Earth Day on April 21st at Ian Deutch Memorial Park asking all to come out and join. 
 
Mr. Kulkin said he attended the last meeting of the Community Center Advisory Board and thanked 
members for all they had done. 

 
7. Discussion on Town of Pahrump Economic Development Report.   

 
 



TBM 021412 Page 3 
 

Dr. Waters asked if there was enough time to put the backup for the business license report in the first 
meeting of the month. 
Mr. Kohbarger responded it would be emailed to the Town Board within the first few days of the 
month as it became available. 

 
8. Discussion and Possible Decision to Amend Pahrump Town Ordinance# 35 and Providing for Other 

Matters Properly Related Thereto.   
 
Mr. Kohbarger said he wasn't sure he could say much about the ordinance which had not already been 
said. He stated Mr. Darby and Mr. Kulkin's suggested changes could be made per the Board's 
decision. He also stated a single typographical error would be changed. 
He went over the changes requested by Mr. Darby and Mr. Kulkin. 
 
After much discussion, changes which are attached in the final PTO 35 were agreed upon by the 
consensus of the Board. 
 
Mr. Darby said he appreciated all of the hard work Staff had put into the ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kulkin said he could not support something which favored one group over another, particularly 
referring to non-profits. 
Mr. Kohbarger and Mr. Meich clarified non-profits were required to have a license under the 
proposed ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger asked, should there be a motion, the motion be to adopt the amended ordinance as 
approved item by item by the board tonight. 
 
Dr. Waters motioned to accept PTO 35 with the changes as recommended by the Board. 
Mrs. Parker seconded. 
 
Motion carried, 4-1, with Mr. Darby voting nay. 
 
Mr. Darby called for a 5 minute break. 

9. Discussion and Possible Decision to Approve Resolution #2012-01, A Resolution Adopting a Fee 
Structure Pursuant to Pahrump Town Ordinance No 35, as Amended.   
Mr. Kohbarger said staff's proposed resolution was in the backup along with Mr. Kulkin's requested 
changes to the fees. He stated Mr. Balloqui would also like to make comments. 
He also mentioned the ‘3’ at the end of 501(c) would be excluded. 
 
Mr. Meich continued with suggested corrections. 
 
Mrs. Parker asked if the Fire Inspections needed to be added to the resolution as she felt non-profit 
entities should have the same fee. 
The Board chose not to add this to the resolution. 
 
Mr. Kulkin said he wished to speak of each price. 
He also stated he felt businesses should be charged based on the number of employees. 
 
Al Balloqui, Community Business and Development Services Manager, spoke with suggestions for 
the fee structure. 
Mrs. Endersby asked if staff had been aware of Mr. Balloqui’s recommendations before the meeting. 
Mr. Balloqui stated he gave this information after the backup had been prepared. 



TBM 021412 Page 4 
 

Mrs. Endersby requested any additional recommendations from staff be provided in the backup in the 
future. 
 
The Board went through the proposed list of prices and agreed upon fees in the backup with the 
addition of a $10 fee per vending machine location. 
 
Mrs. Parker motioned to adopt the Resolution 2012-01 with amendments as suggested by legal 
counsel and fees amended by the Board. 
Dr. Waters seconded. 
 
Motion carried, 3-2, with Mr. Kulkin and Mr. Darby voting nay. 

 
10. Discussion and Possible Decision to Create a Town Board Committee to Negotiate a Contract with 

the Current Town Manager and All Other Matters Properly Related thereto.   
 
 
Mr. Darby said it was at the discretion of the Board to create a committee however also made all 
aware he had submitted an agenda item to bring back the possible action of advertising for a new 
Town Manager. 
 
Mr. Kulkin said he had a problem with going through the effort of this item only to look for a new 
manager. 
 
Mr. Darby said the current contract was a one year contract which would expire therefore the process 
to give notice of termination would not apply. 
 
Dr. Waters said he would be willing to serve on the committee. 
 
Mr. Darby stated he felt this would be an important negotiation tool in finding a new Town Manager. 
 
Mr. Kulkin said he felt the Board should move forward with their decision not to look for a new 
Town Manager. 
 
Mr. Darby asked if Mr. Kulkin would like him to table the item until after the next meeting 
concerning advertising for a new Town Manager. 
 
Mr. Kulkin expressed interest in sitting on the committee. 
 
Mrs. Parker said she did not feel she or Mr. Darby should be on this committee as they would not be 
on the Board the following year. 
Mr. Darby agreed. 
 
Mrs. Endersby said she was not in favor of extending the contract and therefore did not wish to sit on 
the committee. 
 
Mr. Meich suggested the committee meet before the next Town Board meeting. 
 
Mr. Kulkin motioned himself and Dr. Waters be appointed to a committee to negotiate a new 
contract with the Town Manager. 
Dr. Waters seconded. 

 
Motion carried, 4-1, with Mrs. Endersby voting nay. 

 



TBM 021412 Page 5 
 

11. Discussion and Possible Decision on Creating a New Advisory Board to the Pahrump Town Board 
for the Purpose of Investigating the Possibility of Constructing a Convention Center/ Civic Center in 
Pahrump and All Other Matters Properly Related Thereto.   
 
Mr. Kulkin said, with the Ruud Center's restrictions, the Town needed a civic center in the future. He 
said this board would look at financial consideration, ideas on the type of building, space, and 
location. He said it would be able to take the time to come up with a good proposal as this was not 
something which could happen overnight. 
 
Mrs. Parker recommended the board be advertised with ideas of backgrounds and qualifications 
which would fit the mission of the board. 
Mr. Kohbarger said it could be suggested to staff to do this advertisement to bring back at a future 
town board meeting should they choose to move forward. 
 
Dr. Waters said he supported this. 
 
Mr. Darby said having spoken with Mr. Kohbarger, there was a sizable property beside the Town 
Office. He asked what a cost estimate would be to have a design on this property as was a more 
economical solution than to create a new advisory board. 
Mrs. Parker concurred considering the location. 
 
Mrs. Parker motioned to create a new advisory board to the Pahrump Town Board for the 
purpose of investigating the possibility of constructing a convention center/ civic center in 
Pahrump. 
Mr. Kulkin seconded. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger clarified if there was a direction to staff to create an advertisement. 
Mr. Darby confirmed this via Mrs. Parker. 
 
Motion carried 4-1, with Mr. Darby voting nay. 

 
12. Discussion and Possible Decision to Approve Additional Annual Leave for Town Employees and All 

Other Matters Properly Related Thereto.   
 
Mr. Balloqui clarified he was not seeking additional annual leave but to receive leave he had already 
earned. He said all information was in the backup. He said approximately a third of staff was subject 
to this loss of leave. He said had this credited time been adjusted correctly two years previous when 
he first went over on annual leave hours he would not be requesting this today. He said his new wage 
statement he received Saturday credited him back the time which was previously taken away. 
He said he was at the Board's mercy and would respect whichever decision the Board made. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger said financial programs for most entities stop credit hours at 240 whereas the County, 
who processes paychecks, does not have the capability to do this or they did not enter it correctly 
which created this further misunderstanding. 
He said in the department head position it was hard for management positions to take vacations with 
such a short staff. 
He said he recommended this be denied for budgeting reasons. 
 
Mr. Kulkin said he felt there were errors on both sides and that he liked the idea of Mr. Kohbarger 
sitting with each of the six affected employees to find an agreement and that he felt this would be fair 
to reach a compromise. 
 



TBM 021412 Page 6 
 

Mr. Darby said he could see where the confusion was and felt there should be some type of 
agreement. 
 
Mrs. Endersby commented she felt staff did an outstanding job and not abusing leave use. She said as 
the personnel policy says the employer would monitor accrual. She said she felt whether or not the 
County did that did not excuse the Town. She asked Legal Counsel if this was a personnel policy 
matter. 
Mr. Meich said the personnel policy was clear on a legal perspective as the Town Manager stated in 
the backup. 
Mr. Kohbarger clarified this was not a personnel issue but a personnel policy issue and he did not 
have the power to alter the personnel policy. He said he was required to deny as it was part of the 
personnel policy he could not change. He then suggested to Mr. Balloqui he could appeal to the Town 
Board as they did have the power to do this. 
Mrs. Endersby asked if the Board decided to grant this to Mr. Balloqui would it also grant hours to all 
others affected. 
Legal Counsel said no it would not however it would create an expectation for those individuals. 
 
Dr. Waters stated the personnel policy supersedes pay stubs. Dr. Waters said according to the manual 
nothing over 240 had been earned. It was signed and agreed upon by that signature no matter how 
long ago it happened. 
Mr. Balloqui stated if this was at the fault of just his negligence he would not have made this appeal. 
He asked this also be made clear in the future to make sure this did not happen to anyone else. He 
said he disagreed that he did earn the hours as they only accumulate through work. 
 
Mr. Kulkin motioned for Mr. Kohbarger, Human Resources, and the affected parties meet and 
come back to the board with a suggestion as to what should be done. 
Motion died due to lack of a second. 
 
Dr. Waters said this would establish a precedent and although he understood what Mr. Balloqui had 
to say and felt for him the personnel policy stated clearly therefore the precedent should not be set. 
 
Mrs. Endersby motioned to approve additional leave in this instance for all affected employees. 
Motion died due to lack of a second. 
 
Dr. Waters motioned to deny the request. 
Mrs. Parker seconded. 
 
Motioned carried, 3-2, with Mr. Kulkin and Mrs. Endersby voting nay. 

 
13. Discussion and Possible Decision Consent agenda items:   

e. Action – Approval of Town Vouchers. 
f. Action – Approval of Town Board Minutes for January 10, 2012 and January 24, 2012. 
g. Action – Approval to Accept Mr. Michael Zaman, Mr. Allan J. Walter and Ms. Elizabeth L. 

Weikel to the Pahrump Public Lands Advisory Board. 
h. Action – Approval to Accept the Resignation of Mr. Will Bond from the Pahrump Public Lands 

Advisory Board. 
(heard as item 3.5) 

 
14. Future Meetings/Workshops: Date, Time and Location   

a. Town Board Retreat – TBD 
 
Mr. Kohbarger announced he had spoken with a possible applicant earlier that day about the 
retreat. They hoped it could take place toward the beginning of March. 



TBM 021412 Page 7 
 

 
15. Staff’s Comments   

 
Mr. Kohbarger commended Chief Lewis for all he had done having recently been short staffed. He 
said the Town should be fortunate and appreciative for such a Chief. 

 
16. Town Board Member’s Comments  

 
Mrs. Parker said there was not enough staff time to get all business licenses scanned for electronic 
records and she was personally working to help scan these items. She said it would be done by may 
take a while 
 
Mr. Kulkin spoke about public comment and wished Mr. Darby good luck with State Assembly. 
 
Dr. Waters addressed a comment made in the night about the roads stating the Town could do nothing 
about the roads as it was a County department and they could do no more than speak with the 
Commissioners. 
 
Mr. Darby stated again he would be stepping down as Chair to be just a member as he was running 
for State Assembly. 

 
17. Public Comment 

 
Public comment was heard. 
 

18. Adjournment  
 
Mr. Darby adjourned the meeting at 10:39pm. 

 
 


